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BEFORE THE
 

ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION

ILLINOIS POWER COMPANY
d/b/a AmerenIP

and 
AMEREN ILLINOIS TRANSMISSION 
COMPANY

Petition for (i) a Certificate of 
Public Convenience and Necessity, 
Pursuant to Section 8-406(a) of the 
Public Utilities Act; (ii) a 
Certificate of Public Convenience 
and Necessity, Pursuant to Section 
8-406 of the Public Utilities Act, 
Authorizing Construction, Operation 
and Maintenance of a new 345,000 
volt Electric Lines in Monroe, 
Randolph, St. Clair, and Washington 
Counties, Illinois; (iii) an Order 
Pursuant to Section 8-503 of the 
Public Utilities Act Approving 
Construction of New Transmission 
Facilities; (iv) Approval of an 
Agreement Between Affiliated 
Interests; and (v) Other Relief as 
May Be Necessary.  

)
)
)  DOCKET NO.  
)  06-0179
)
)  Public 
)  Forum
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Tuesday, July 18, 2006 

Red Bud, Illinois

7:00 P.M.

BEFORE: MR. ROBERT BENSKO 
    Chief Public Hearing Officer

SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY, by
Carla Boehl, Reporter, Ln. #084-002710
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PROCEEDINGS 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Good evening, 

everyone.  I appreciate your attendance tonight.  My 

name is Robert Bensko and I am the chief public 

hearing officer for the Illinois Commerce Commission.  

And I am here tonight to conduct the public forum or 

a public hearing on AmerenIP's plan to connect the 

Prairie State Generating Company to the Ameren 

transmission system and construct three 345 kV 

electric transmission lines.  The reason that I am 

here tonight is that your Senator and your rep have 

petitioned to the Commission for us to hold a public 

hearing.  

Now, the case, the official case 

before the Commission, is held in Springfield, 

Illinois.  I know some of you people in this room 

tonight are probably parties to that case or on the 

mailing list to the case.  

The reason that we do public hearings 

is to come and listen and gather information and put 

it in the public record of the file so that we know 

how the public feels about this particular line.  We 
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come to you.  It is the Commission's feeling that it 

is better for us to go to the community and get the 

opinions of the people, instead of making all of you 

drive to Springfield.  That puts a small burden on 

one person, me, all the time because I am the one 

that always has to do them all.  But what it does to 

the public and to the people of the state of 

Illinois, makes them realize that we do care about 

what you have to say and we do care about your 

opinions.  

Let me give you a little explanation 

about how we are going to work things tonight.  I run 

a very tight ship.  I like things going as smoothly 

as possible.  There are two different things that we 

are going to do here tonight.  I will have the 

companies come up before you, the company and Peabody 

come up before you, and tell you what is going on, 

what they are going to do, what lines, you know, have 

been proposed, why Ameren has to put these lines in, 

what Peabody -- why Peabody needs these lines in 

Illinois, and then I am going to call the list that 

everyone signed up tonight.  If you don't wish to 
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speak when I call your name, just say "I decline."  

If you signed the sheets tonight without knowing that 

that's why you were signing them, when I call your 

name please be quiet.  

There was a little bit of 

miscommunication tonight from Ron Linkenback.  Ron is 

the supervisor of electrical engineering and the 

engineering department at the Illinois Commerce 

Commission.  Could you stand up, Ron?  Ron is also 

new to this process, the public hearings.  I am sort 

of stuck going to every one of them and very rarely 

do the rest of the staff come and participate with 

me.  But Ron told someone in the audience tonight 

that they couldn't turn in written comments.  I will 

take all written comments tonight.  If you want to 

come up and read your comments and then hand them to 

me, that's fine.  Or if you just want to give them to 

me, I will put those comments in the public record.  

The first portion of the hearing 

tonight will be for you to make comments.  The only 

way the Illinois Commerce Commission is going to know 

how the people feel in this area is if you comment or 
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put it in writing.  And I will give you my name and 

address if you just want to send it to me.  

Don't be afraid to stand up here and 

speak tonight.  No one is going to laugh.  No one is 

going to say anything.  Because I run a tight ship.  

And the other thing is, anyone that steps up here, 

whether you agree with them or not, be it the company 

or anyone, I demand that you respect them.  You might 

not like what they are saying, but each one of us in 

this room has a job, and that job might lead you to 

do some things that other people might not like.  But 

you have to respect the person because they do have 

that job and that's why they are here tonight, to 

give comment, to give explanation and go from there.  

So I will call the names.  I usually 

say at this point I will call the names in which the 

line that you signed up, but there were many of those 

pink sheets laying up there so I might not get the 

ones that signed up first first.  But I will give 

everyone a chance to speak tonight.  

The second portion, I will send the 

reporter home, not because I dislike her but because 
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the second portion of tonight's hearing will be off 

the record.  There is no -- there is no area in state 

law that's going to make you people -- that I should 

make you people raise your hand and you swear that 

you are going to tell the truth, the whole truth and 

nothing but the truth.  There is no time that you 

will be cross-examined tonight.  So all I am asking 

you to do is I am asking you to tell us what you 

feel.  

The second portion, Peabody and Ameren 

will come up here, and the Commission, and you can 

ask us questions and we will try to answer those 

questions to the best of our ability.  To the 

companies, I am telling them tonight that if there is 

a question that they tell me and you that they cannot 

answer tonight, I give them 48 hours to contact you 

back.  Now, if they don't, I want you to call me.  If 

they call you within those 48 hours and say I need a 

couple extra days to get that information, that's 

fine.  But the companies -- I have never had to make 

that call back to the companies and say why didn't 

you get a hold of this person.  
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The same goes for myself.  If I can't 

answer your questions tonight, I will get back to you 

within 48 hours and try to answer that question.  Ron 

is here tonight to observe.  Ron is part of the case.  

Saying that, he can't answer questions.  He is just 

hear to gather information for himself and for the 

Commission.  

With me tonight is a court reporter.  

She will record everything that you say tonight.  I 

ask you again, if you haven't signed up and you want 

to speak, after I call all the names on the list, 

what I will do is I will give you another opportunity 

to raise your hand and come up and speak.  But I have 

to stress one thing, folks.  I can't, and the 

Commission can't, understand what you are thinking if 

you don't tell us.  So I am asking you to tell us.  

And seeing already the numbers that 

have signed up tonight, I am going to limit each 

person to about two, two and a half minutes so that 

we have to be out of here by ten o'clock tonight.  If 

you go over a little bit, I am not going to say 

anything.  Some of you, you know, only need a couple 
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of minutes.  Other people might need a little bit 

longer.  I am not going to interrupt you.  I want you 

to speak and I want to know what you have to say.  

Some housekeeping things, behind me 

are double doors.  You go out those double doors and 

you turn left and that's where the rest rooms are.  I 

ask that there be no booing, no hissing, no anything 

like that tonight.  It's a respect, not only for some 

of the companies that come up here, but as a respect 

to you, the citizens.  The reason that I am here, the 

reason that my court reporter is here is because of 

you.  We didn't make you drive to Springfield.  We 

don't want you to have to drive to Springfield, but 

we sure do need to know what you want to say.  

The case number for this docket, and 

everybody has some of those little blue cards and if 

not there are some more on that little table, if you 

want to follow along the case on the computer, you 

are allowed to do that.  You can write it down on a 

piece of paper, too.  The Docket Number is 06-0179.  

You can go on the ICC website and it is 

ICC.Illinois -- spelled out -- .gov and then you 
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click on the e-Docket icon down there and you will 

get right to the case.  And you can follow the case 

along and see what state the case is in, what's going 

on in the case because that is officially on the 

docket and on the record.  The notes and everything 

that we take tonight and the transcript from the 

hearing, that will be placed in a public file of the 

record and it will be offered to the Chairman and 

Commissioners and any staff that wants to read it to 

get some idea of what happened tonight.  

All right.  Saying all that, I wasted 

how many minutes?  Sorry.  I would like to call on 

Peabody Energy, Robert Reynolds.  He is the Manager 

of Transmission for Peabody and he will give you an 

overview of what Peabody is doing out there and why 

they need to build the facility that they are going 

to build.  Robert. 

MR. REYNOLDS:  Thank you very much, and I thank 

you for being here this evening.  I am looking around 

at the crowd; there is certainly a lot of familiar 

faces from the past public hearings and meetings, 

past public meetings that we have had.  So thank you 
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for coming here this evening to spend some time with 

us on this important matter.  

I would also like to thank your 

Senator and Representative for making this meeting 

possible tonight, and thank the Illinois Commerce 

Commission for holding this meeting.  

As he says, my name is Robert 

Reynolds.  I am the Manager of Transmission for 

Peabody Energy, and my responsibility with them is to 

make the transmission arrangements that are necessary 

for the power plant.  

Prairie State will produce electricity 

for more than 1.8 million people.  It will create 450 

permanent jobs, thousands of jobs throughout 

construction, and will inject more than $100,000,000 

annually into the Illinois economy.  As you know, 

Prairie State is a power plant being developed by 

Peabody Energy.  

Francis S. Peabody founded a small 

coal company in 1883.  In 1895 he opened his first 

pole line in southern Illinois in Williamson County.  

Peabody Coal and now Peabody Energy have been a 
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familiar name and employer in southern Illinois for 

over a hundred years.  

During the past 25 years has 

communities that could count, previously count, on 

tax revenues and economic activity associated with 

coal mining in southern Illinois suffered?  I think 

you would have to answer yes.  Since 1980 down state 

communities have seen the number of coal mining jobs 

drop from more than 18,000 to a current level of 

about 3500.  

So in that 25 years what has changed?  

In 1980 we had record players, 8-track tape players, 

TV antennas were on the tops of most of our homes and 

roofs.  Our cars had carburetors and not computer 

chips, and a VCR and a microwave oven were $400 high 

technology luxury items.  Today our kids have Ipods.  

We play CDs, we watch DVDs and on demand satellite 

TV.  How many of us have computers in our homes?  Our 

car navigation systems will talk to us, telling us 

which way to go.  And a decent microwave oven costs 

$79.  I think we all have to agree that technology 

has advanced in those past 25 years.  
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During these 25 years technology has 

advanced to the point where Illinois coal can once 

again be utilized, and it can be used as a fuel in an 

environmentally clean manner.  Is Illinois coal use 

and the associated jobs an economic benefit for your 

communities once again possible?  Yes, thanks to the 

advances in technology.  These very advances in 

technology are why Peabody Energy is interested in 

building the Prairie State Power Plant near Marissa.  

By the way, do you know that over one 

half billion dollars will be invested in advance 

control technology at this power plant to make this 

one of the cleanest coal fueled power plants in 

America.  

So let's consider this, what is a 

power plant?  It is essentially a factory.  It takes 

raw materials in, as any other factory does, and 

turns them into a product that is useful to all of 

us.  A power plant factory manufactures electricity.  

What if we were talking about building a car factory 

near Marissa.  Would we all recognize the cars 

produced had to leave the factory, maybe on those car 
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hauler trailer trucks?  We see those car hauler 

trailer trucks all over the place.  We readily know 

that these large trucks will have to travel on good 

roads, big enough and strong enough to safely allow 

these cars to be transported to showrooms and to 

consumers.  

The product a power plant factory 

produces is no different.  Do we all have a hard time 

relating to electricity as a product and realizing 

its similarities with other products?  I think the 

answer is yes.  And why?  This may help to explain.  

Electricity is a product that you can't see, you 

can't hear, you can't smell, and you sure don't want 

to touch it.  Is it any wonder we don't think of 

electricity as a product.  Don't we think of 

electricity mostly in terms of what it can do for us?  

We use it every day to light and condition our homes, 

to power our factories and offices, to run our high 

technology computers, and to run our microwave ovens.  

Would you just think about this?  Just 

like the car factory needs good highways, the 

electricity factory needs good electricity highways 
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to allow the finished product to be transported to 

your cities, businesses and homes.  These electricity 

highways have to be big enough, strong enough and 

safe enough to effectively and efficiently transport 

the electricity.  

So Ameren is here tonight, and what is 

Ameren charged with doing?  They are the electric 

utility that is expert at building these electricity 

highways.  They are building the wires or high 

voltage transmission lines that will allow the 

electricity produced by Prairie State to get to 

consumers.  If we are not for Prairie State, these 

particular high voltage transmission lines that we 

are here tonight to discuss would not be necessary.  

The Prairie State plant is located a 

few miles northeast of Marissa.  The plant is located 

here because of abundant coal reserves under the 

ground.  Illinois has more coal under its surface 

than Saudi Arabia and Kuwait have oil when you look 

at it from an energy reserves perspective.  You know, 

Illinois is blessed to be rich in energy.  Have we 

thought about this very much up to now?  Maybe not.  
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I don't know about you, but I paid $3.09 a gallon for 

the gasoline I used to get here tonight.  Maybe we 

all should start thinking about the abundant reserves 

and abundant supply of energy that Illinois has.  We 

will be thinking about that a lot more in the future.  

So what about Prairie State?  What 

about the electricity factory?  It will use Illinois 

coal, mined very nearby and conveyed to the power 

plant.  The electricity factory will produce enough 

electricity, as I said, for 1.8 million people.  It 

is modern and efficient using state-of-the-art 

technology and environmental controls.  It will be 

the cleanest coal-fueled power plant in Illinois.  It 

is scheduled to be in commercial operation in late 

2010, 2011.  

What does Prairie State mean to your 

local communities?  Well, it is a two billion dollar 

plus project, the largest private capital project 

ever planned for southern Illinois.  There will be 

2500 construction jobs at the peak of construction.  

There will be 450 permanent jobs, around 350 of those 

will be coal mining jobs.  The average salary for 
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these jobs will be about $55,000 a year.  And once 

operational, this power plant will inject nearly $100 

million annually into the Illinois economy.  

We at Peabody Energy appreciate your 

attendance tonight.  We appreciate your consideration 

of the benefits of Prairie State and how those 

benefits will affect your communities.  I look 

forward to your comments and questions, and I will do 

my level best to answer them.  Thank you. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you, Bob.  Paul, 

you want to introduce yourself?  

MR. HOWARD:  See the short guy with this thing 

here?  My name is Paul Howard.  Thank you, Robert, 

and thank you, Robert.  Thank all of you for being 

here tonight.  I am Paul Howard, manager of the 

Transmission and Distribution Design Department for 

Ameren.  I am here to talk to you about the 

transmission line component of the Prairie State 

project.  

In his comments Robert did a great job 

of explaining Ameren's role on the Peabody Prairie 

State Plant campus.  We are responsible for building 
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the electricity highways that will deliver the 

electricity product produced by Prairie State.  

First and foremost, as transmission 

owner in the area, Ameren Illinois Power is committed 

and obligated under the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission rules to provide the infrastructure 

necessary to give a new generation station reliable 

access to the transmission grid.  Ameren Transco, an 

affiliate of AmerenIP, will participate in the 

funding, construction and ownership of the new 

transmission facilities.  AmerenIP is also committed 

to building those facilities in a way that minimizes 

the impact on individual landowners and incorporated 

communities, agricultural production and on the 

environment.  

I will talk more in a minute about the 

factors that we use in determining a preferred 

transmission line route.  Let's first look at the 

transmission project as a whole.  We provided maps to 

several of you tonight as you came in and we have 

some diagrams up here.  And I know many of you; I 

recognize several people who were here December 7 
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when we had the public workshop, informational public 

workshop, where Ameren rolled out the project and got 

your input.  

As we explained, a new transmission 

line capacity is necessary to carry additional energy 

that will be generated by Prairie State onto the 

transmission grid that serves the entire Midwest 

region.  Before Ameren could even begin deciding the 

process for the line, a group of planners, both 

Ameren and independent engineers, looked at multiple 

factors to develop and then evaluated several plans.  

After considerable study they selected the overall 

plan that would best insure the reliability to 

provide safe, reliable, efficient service for the 

Prairie State Energy campus.  

This plan proposes transmission lines 

that will link the new Prairie State facility to the 

Baldwin Power Station located near Baldwin, Illinois, 

not too far from here -- that's owned by Dynegy -- 

and to the Rush Island Power Station in Jefferson 

County, Missouri, which is owned by Ameren Union 

Electric.  
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So you might ask why do we link a 

power plant to other power plants.  Well, it really 

boils down to this.  The power plants that are there 

already are really transmission hubs.  They have 

existing lines that connect into the grid as you can 

see on the front half of the map we provided you in 

your handout tonight and that we have up here.  So 

they are kind of like a hub or an interstate highway 

intersection.  So we want to take advantage of that 

existing infrastructure and connect the new plant to 

that to out the power.  This is the way that we can 

get the power onto the grid in the most efficient and 

effective manner.  

As Robert mentioned earlier, much like 

when you build a new factory, you build a road to it.  

You connect the road to other major arteries already 

in existence.  This helps to minimize the impact on 

the surrounding area and the cost.  Rush Island and 

Baldwin Power Station in this project are merely the 

transmission hubs, the highways, for the power 

generated at Prairie State to get to the larger 

transmission grid throughout the Midwest.  
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More specifically, to make these 

connections the overall plan calls for three new 

345,000 volt transmission lines.  There will be an 

approximately one-mile line that will extend south 

out of the plant from Prairie State and it will 

connect to an existing AmerenIP 345,000 volt line.  

There will be an approximately eight-mile line that 

will extend west from the plant and connect to an 

existing 345,000 volt Ameren-owned, AmerenIP-owned, 

transmission line, and then there will also be an 

approximately 27-mile new line that will extend from 

Baldwin Power Station to Rush Island Power Station in 

Missouri.  

Again, copies of our fact sheet were 

where you came in.  Those were handed out at the 

workshop December 7 as well, and they contain more 

details about the lines, the type of structures that 

are to be used, the timing and the cost of the 

project, etc., as well as the maps we have given you 

tonight.  

Now let's talk a little bit about how 

Ameren determines a preferred transmission line 
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route.  First of all, going back to the planning 

stage, the planners, a group of independent planners, 

planning engineers and Ameren engineers that 

performed this study under the auspices of the 

Midwest Independent System Operator determined the 

points for the substations that needed to be 

connected by the transmission lines.  

From that they and the design 

department then worked to establish an overall 

geographic area, in consideration of which we gather 

all types of facts that include the natural 

environmental uses in that area.  As part of the 

process we considered multiple factors in determining 

our viable transmission line routes.  These included 

avoiding existing homes and other structures 

including public use facilities, avoiding 

incorporated communities, minimizing destruction of 

trees, wetlands and natural habitats, adhering to the 

requirements of designated historical preservation 

areas and limiting the agricultural impact, among 

other items.  

With this project we also had to look 
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at the optimal locations to cross the two major 

rivers in the area, obviously the Kaskaskia and the 

Mississippi River.  We took into consideration the 

concerns presented by communities, by individual 

landowners and multiple organizations and agencies, 

including the Illinois Department of Natural 

Resources, the Illinois Nature Preserve Commission, 

the Department of Agricultural and many others.  We 

weighed all of these factors to yield a preferred 

route and two alternate routes.  

Many of those concerns that I 

mentioned above were presented to us through previous 

public meetings and workshops.  For example, we met 

right in this room in Red Bud in December.  We met at 

Monroe County and we have had a meeting with the 

Lower Kaskaskia Stakeholders Incorporated.  Of 

course, in the end we must be able to build and 

maintain the lines so the routes must accommodate the 

construction and operation and maintenance of these 

highway of transmission lines, our ability to do 

that.  

While we recognize we cannot alleviate 
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the concerns of all the interested parties, we take 

into account all of the factors mentioned above, we 

believe that we put forth a route proposal that 

minimizes the overall impact of this line, these set 

of lines.  In addition, we believe it is a route that 

follows sound engineering practices and is cost 

effective.  

So what happens next?  As most of you 

know, as Robert explained earlier, once we develop 

what we believe is the preferred route, we notify the 

landowners that would be affected by that route.  

Again, we met with many of you at the public workshop 

back here in December and we had very detailed route 

maps and aerial photography available at that time.  

At subsequent public meetings we 

talked again with landowners who would be affected by 

the route, as well as those who would be affected by 

the alternate routes.  In March we filed our 

preferred and alternate line routes with the Illinois 

Commerce Commission, and currently members of our 

real estate team began contacting individual 

landowners to obtain land survey rights and easement 
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options.  

In May we filed some modifications to 

the Baldwin/Rush Island line.  Those modifications 

would relocate portions of the line to run near poles 

on southern IL roads.  It also relocates the 

northwestern portion of the route to bottom lands and 

wetlands to parallel existing property lines and 

avoid close proximity to homesteads.  

The Illinois Commerce Commission will 

review our proposal and others, and after considering 

testimony and evidence from Ameren and other 

interested parties will either approve a route for 

the transmission lines or deny the proposal.  We 

expect a decision later this year so that we can then 

acquire the easements, material, etc., and construct 

the lines in time to connect to Prairie State.  

That in a nutshell is where we are now 

and how we got to -- how we got here.  We realize 

that you have many questions.  You may have 

additional questions about this project, and during 

the question and answer period later this evening, we 

will be happy to address any general questions or 
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concerns you might have.  

At this time I would like to introduce 

several people here from Ameren this evening who will 

help in answering those questions at that time.  John 

Berut (sp), if you can raise your hand.  John is the 

manager of Illinois Division 6 which is where much of 

the transmission line will be built, and so many of 

you may know him because he is responsible for 

certain local communities here and has spoken to many 

of the groups that I mentioned above.  

Rick Trells (sp) is our real estate 

supervisor and Bill Trom (sp), Bill is down there, 

Bill Trom with Coates, which is our real estate 

partner in this project.  We know that many of the 

property owners have met with Bill.  George Sheppard 

(sp), our public affairs representative.  Roger Cruz, 

our environmental safety and health.  Ed Fitzhenry, 

our managing associate general counsel for the case.  

Jackie Voiles, state regulatory liaison, and Eric 

Abbot, corporate communications and media relations.  

If I cannot answer the questions that 

come up later this evening, these folks will be able 
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to help me with that.  In addition, Bill Trom and his 

team of agents will be available following the 

meeting to discuss landowner concerns on an 

individual basis.  John Berut, who I introduced 

earlier, will also be available following the meeting 

to help with specific customer issues on an 

individual basis if it is something other than this 

particular project, in other words, if you have a 

question about this issue, for example.  

I want to thank all of them for 

agreeing to be here tonight and helping this evening.  

We at Ameren appreciate you as customers.  We 

appreciate your attendance tonight, and we look 

forward to your comments and questions.  My 

colleagues and I will do our best to answer them.  

Thank you very much. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you.  Senator?  

Senator Lectenfeld and I spoke, I 

think, more times than he would like to count.  But 

he was very interested in having this meeting tonight 

and getting it set here in Red Bud.  He did a lot of 

the foot work for me to get this room and everything 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY
 Two North LaSalle Street   Chicago, Illinois  60602

(312) 782-4705

28

set up.  So I thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR LECTENFELD:  Well, thank you.  I 

obviously expected a large crowd.  I think there are 

people here who are certainly for this and some who 

are against this.  

Let me just try to tell you that, as a 

legislator, one of the things -- you have heard it a 

thousand times -- politicians tell people that they 

are going to create jobs in their area, they are 

going to make life better for people who live in that 

area.  And that's not an easy job.  For everything 

that's out there, there are a lot of areas competing 

for the same thing, other states competing for the 

same thing.  And most of the things that we really go 

after to try to make life better, to try to create 

jobs in our area, we fail in most of them, in all 

honesty.  

But this is a project that I have to 

tell you upfront that I certainly am for.  I think it 

creates for southern Illinois a big improvement in 

just the richness of life and certainly a plus and a 

start in the right direction.  
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But I also understand that anyone who 

has property that this line is going to go through, 

it is a different story.  If I had property that the 

line was going to go through, I would be concerned 

about it, too.  And I have been out to a few people's 

homes, by the way, and looked at different areas, 

different homes, different lines, different fields in 

which the line was going through it, and I will be 

real honest with you, I would not like that one bit 

if that were my property.  

But I think we knew upfront that if we 

were going to be honest and say that we really were 

for this project, try to make it happen, that we were 

going to face this night where we would have a night 

and many nights in which people would be unhappy with 

the project.  Because obviously some people are going 

to suffer a lot more than others and are going to 

have a much greater burden than other people.  Some 

people will in fact only gain out of it jobs or 

whatever.  

All we would ask the Commerce 

Commission to do is to try to make it as easy as 
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possible and create as few problems as possible and 

create as few burdens as possible on the people of 

this area.  That obviously will not be easy.  We have 

asked them to listen and hopefully there can be maybe 

some changes in what they intend to do with regard to 

this line.  

There is no question without the line 

we don't need the power plant and the power plant is 

useless.  Because there has to be a line and we know 

that.  And when that happens there will be people 

certainly who are inconvenienced.  

So hopefully through exercises like 

this and others that there will be an attempt made to 

try to make this as less of a burden as possible on 

many people who are going to suffer a lot more than 

others.  

So again I hope it is a good evening 

and I hope things come out.  Certainly I think people 

are going to leave who are going to be still upset.  

But we would like to make this as little problem as 

possible for as many people as possible.  Thank you.  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Representative?  
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REPRESENTATIVE REITZ:  Thanks, Robert, and 

David.  I agree with what Dave said.  We have worked 

hard to try to get projects.  This is going to be a 

very large capital project and create opportunity for 

a lot of people, and there will be people that are 

adversely affected.  And that's why we have asked to 

make sure that we have a chance to make this part of 

the process, bring it as close as we can so that 

people will have an opportunity to express their 

concerns and let the Commission know exactly what 

their concerns are.  And we are hopeful that between 

the Commission and Ameren they are able to 

accommodate those and make this as less obtrusive as 

possible and adversely affect people in any way.  

So we appreciate everyone coming down 

and appreciate everyone coming out.  And we are here 

to listen also.  We have talked to a number of people 

and I think there are some very good suggestions out 

there.  The Commerce Commission has a procedure, as 

we do with a number of different things, deciding to 

set up the Commission to take care of this to make 

sure that it will get done in some form or fashion.  
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So make sure they know your feelings, make sure that 

they know that you have concerns, and hopefully 

Ameren and the Commission will be able to accommodate 

those.  Thank you. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  I would like to call 

up Philip Gonet with the Illinois Coal Association. 

MR. GONET:  Thank you, Mr. Bensko.  My name is 

Phil Gonet, G-O-N-E-T, and I am the president of the 

Illinois Coal Association.  It is my pleasure to be 

with you here this evening to talk about an important 

project I believe that will revitalize southern 

Illinois.  I will be brief.  I will try to keep it to 

that two, two and a half minutes, Bob.  

The points I would like to make, and 

some of them have already been made.  We have 

abundant coal reserves in Illinois.  The state has a 

policy to support lineout power plants and we need 

transmission lines to get electricity out.  Those are 

the facts.  Let me provide a little bit of 

background.  

You heard from Robert Reynolds about 

production and about these full mine lands.  We have 
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more coal reserves, the energy content, and the coal 

reserves beneath the border of the state of Illinois 

are more than the energy content of the oil reserves 

of Saudi Arabia and Kuwait combined.  Think about 

that for a minute.  That's what we have here in 

Illinois.  

Put that into figures, we have over, 

according to the Illinois State Geological Survey, 

geologists that have measured this, we have over, 

above 100 billion tons of recoverable coal in 

Illinois.  What does that mean?  Last year we mined 

32 million tons.  So we have enough coal in Illinois 

to mine at that rate for probably 3,000 years.  

Put it another way, in this country 

the United States used 1.1 billion tons of coal in 

2005.  We have enough coal just in Illinois, 

recoverable coal, to supply this country's energy 

needs for the next 100 years.  

Now, we all know what happened to 

Illinois coal.  There isn't a family or a person in 

this room that has not been impacted by the 

environmental policies of this country to provide 
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clean air, and what that has meant to the Illinois 

coal industry.  Robert gave some figures.  The 

figures I used, in 1990 we mined 62 billion tons of 

coal and had 10,000 workers.  We did our local in 

2003 where we mined 31 million tons of coal with 3500 

workers.  Coal production was cut in half and 

employment cut by two-thirds.  

Now we see a resurgence, and why is 

that?  And strangely enough it is because of the 

environmental laws, the clean air act laws, that 

created the effect that made the technology available 

to provide clean coal technology to provide 

electricity cleanly by burning coal.  And also 

because of a phenomenon that's happening in other 

market, oil and natural gas, and a process called 

gasification that can provide natural gas and oil at 

prices that are below market prices today.  

Those things are impacting Illinois 

coal.  We have had at least seven or eight coal mine 

applications be filed with the state of Illinois in 

the last year and a half.  Three of them, those 

permits, have been approved.  There is a possibility 
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that in the next two or three years we will see a 

doubling in the amount of production of Illinois 

coal.  So what this comes down to is jobs.  So point 

number 1, we have abundant coal reserves and that 

equals jobs.  

Point number 2, the state has a policy 

to provide financial assistance to lineout power 

plants and the Prairie State Energy campus is just 

that.  In 2001, largely due to the responsibility of 

Senator Lectenfeld and Representative Reitz and 

others, the Coal Act of 2001 was signed into law 

which provides over $3.5 billion in incentives to 

build power plants at coal mines.  If you build a 

power plant at a coal mine, you take the 

transportation costs out of the cost of producing 

electricity which now makes Illinois coal more 

competitively priced with that coal in other states, 

particularly coal from out west where, as strange as 

it may seem, today it is still cheaper to haul coal 

in from Wyoming than it is to mine it just down the 

street.  But that is going to change.  So the state 

has a policy of providing financial incentives to 
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provide power plants at coal mines.  

Where is the power going to go?  The 

population basis in southern Illinois certainly can't 

support the 1500 megawatt power plant that Peabody 

Energy is planning on constructing.  That power has 

to go elsewhere in the region.  Where will that power 

go and how will it get there, that's why we are here 

tonight.  Ameren is charged with providing that 

pathway, providing that highway to get that 

electricity to the end users.  

We have an opportunity here in 

Illinois to build power plants, build coal mines, 

provide jobs for our families that will supply energy 

for the rest of this country, at least in this 

region, and it is a state policy.  

Finally, transmission lines, I 

mentioned that we need that as a highway to get power 

out.  We can build these power plants and they are no 

good unless we can get the electricity out.  Because 

there is just not enough demand for electricity in 

southern Illinois for the power plants that are to be 

built on coal mines.  
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So the bottom line here is we may be 

talking about a docketed item at the Illinois 

Commerce Commission that deals with transmission 

lines but it comes down to jobs, jobs at coal mines, 

good paying jobs at coal mines, jobs at power plants, 

good paying jobs at power plants.  Most of you have 

relatives, some of you may have had jobs at power 

plants or coal mines and been laid off in the last 20 

years.  Those jobs are coming back.  Illinois coal is 

better.  Clean coal technology is getting us there, 

thanks to Peabody Energy.  And the extra pollution 

control equipment that they are putting on this 

project meet or exceed all the environmental 

standards that will be expected to come down the line 

in the next 20 years to make this possible.  That and 

the next phase of clean coal technology is coal 

gasification, and Peabody, among other companies, are 

also taking the heat on that to provide clean coal 

technology that will again drive businesses to 

Illinois.  

So I appreciate everyone coming here, 

attending tonight to hear what this means for this 
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region of the state and to be part of the economic 

revitalization of southern Illinois with jobs for 

coal.  Thank you.  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  For some people's 

information, Phil is what I would call an expert on 

this.  He was the executive director of the Illinois 

Commerce Commission and he managed City Water Light 

and Power in Springfield, Illinois.  So he has a good 

grasp of what we are doing here, why we are doing it, 

and I appreciate you coming down.  

Right now, Roger?  Roger Dennison from 

Peabody Coal.

MR. DENNISON:  Thank you, Mr. Bensko.  My name 

is Roger Dennison, D-E-N-N-I-S-O-N, and again I 

joined Peabody about a year and a half ago to do 

Illinois development projects like Prairie State and, 

as Phil talked about, some of the gasification 

projects.  

I am really caught up in the 70s, the 

last energy crisis.  I joined the coal business then 

in '82.  The action would show up in Belleville, 

Illinois.  I worked in Elkhart at that mine.  And the 
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oil companies came in, Shell, Exelon, General 

Dynamics, and these folks came in, again, because of 

the energy shortage.  And when I started up, their 

coal was selling for $42 a ton with projections to be 

$105 20 years later.  

I personally worked my way up to 

president-general manager of that coal mine, and I 

reopened that contract 20 years later.  It wasn't 

$105; it was $20.  So they missed that by a lot.  

What we saw, too, in that environment 

was Illinois coal was being displaced by the western 

coal coming in, again because of the Clean Air Act 

and quite a few things that were going on out there.  

We saw the coal miner system in the past ten years go 

down from 10,000 jobs to less than -- there are about 

3,000 jobs.  So we saw that the industry was in a 

death spiral.  I saw communities devastated; I saw 

schools affected; I saw umpteen things happen that 

really shouldn't have happened.  

Fortunately, I was in a coal mine that 

was able to survive with the coal market like that, 

and unfortunately in this area down here a lot of 
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coal mines didn't.  

I have been a past chairman of the 

Illinois Coal Association.  I have been a past 

president of the Illinois Mining Institute.  I have 

lobbied for coal interests, and as Phil talked about 

a little bit ago, I was part of a group that also 

lobbied for that coal bill to come and to try to 

revitalize Illinois coal.  

And one of the big challenges in that 

was we as coal miners understood that if we were 

going to get our jobs back, we needed coal to 

generate power.  And, of course, it was a pipe dream 

at that time because it was just way far ahead to see 

that you could turn coal into natural gas and things 

like that.  It is reality now.  

But in that, one of the challenges 

that we understood is, well, what's going to be an 

incentive for a utility that's out here existing to 

come and to help somebody else come and put in a 

power plant and put coal miners to work.  And the 

guts of that bill really was putting coal miners to 

work.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY
 Two North LaSalle Street   Chicago, Illinois  60602

(312) 782-4705

41

So tonight what you see, you folks are 

actually pioneers sitting here this evening.  And I 

know it is hard to look at that and to really 

envision that, but this is the first time that has 

come to play, that someone has developed a project to 

this point to where Ameren would actually be the ones 

to come in and put in this transmission line.  

Because, I mean, at the end of the day, folks, 

everyone is going to compete for the same 

electricity.  So the things that you folks have had 

to deal with here are real things and, again, you are 

the first group that's really had to do that because 

this is the first plant that's been built in over two 

decades.  

So my heart goes out to folks here and 

the issues I know we are going to hear tonight.  

Change is very hard.  Emotions get into this, and I 

have learned over a lifetime that every emotion is 

driven by fear.  And hopefully the way to address 

that fear is with facts and hopefully the facts do 

come out tonight so the best decision can be made.  

Sacrifices aren't easy.  I personally 
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was involved, I headed up the Colterville mine 

facility.  Came into town, there was a lot of fears 

in the community of coal miners that went away from 

home.  So there were a lot of things we had to work 

out in fears and come to consensus on.  And I 

understood that the folks sacrificed a lot but today 

we have got over 200 coal miners in Colterville.  And 

I think you can talk to the mayor and the folks in 

the town, they are great neighbors and the Illinois 

coal mining.  To me, I mean, it was great to see 

those folks come back home and work there.  

So this project, it is talking about 

over 450 permanent jobs, again 2500 or so while it is 

being constructed, and it is really great for the 

area.  Now, I can appreciate and I know we are going 

to hear a lot of fears tonight, and I would like to 

say upfront that I appreciate hearing that, 

acknowledge your support.  And I know some folks may 

not see it that way, and I agree with what Senator 

Lectenfeld and Representative Reitz said, we all say 

we want jobs and right now is the toughest part to do 

it because now it is time to say "no," this isn't 
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really what we want to do.  

So, anyway, again I would like to say 

that the Prairie State Energy campus, they are going 

to be great neighbors.  It has been demonstrated at 

Colterville and throughout Illinois on other 

projects.  I am personally involved in some projects 

in some other counties and other communities, and 

they have the same thing.  So Prairie State Energy 

campus and Ameren and you folks are pioneers because 

you are paving the way for Illinois energy 

independence.  We all know what's going on out there.  

You are leading the way to the renewal of the 

Illinois coal jobs through using power supplied by 

Illinois coal and putting folks back to work.  And 

you are also -- this energy campus has state of the 

art environmental emissions on this project.  It is 

the cleanest plant that will be out there.  

So all that said, we definitely want 

folks to support this.  And the Illinois coal miner 

in me, I appreciate at least seeing the project get 

to this point, and again it is tough to see right 

now, but you are pioneers for future generations.  
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Thanks a lot.

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you.

Is Randy Batton (sp) in the crowd 

tonight?  Randy Batton?  Well, I would like to thank 

him and the school for letting us come here tonight 

and use this facility.  I have been in gymnasiums 

that the temperature outside was the same temperature 

as right now.  It was almost unbearable.  

I would like to invite the mayor up to 

speak now.  John Horrell, if you are there.  When you 

come up and speak, folks, I would like you to state 

your name and spell it so that reporter has an 

accurate record of it.  

MAYOR HORRELL:  Thank you, sir.  My name is 

John Horrell, J-O-H-N  H-O-R-R-E-L-L.  The first 

thing I would like to do is welcome everyone to the 

city of Red Bud.  Drive through the town, see what we 

have got to offer.  Maybe some day you will decide to 

move here.  

From the city's perspective on the 

transmission line we are talking about here, our end 

of it is strictly we are worried about the economics 
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of how it is going to affect the city of Red Bud in 

the future.  It is not going to happen in the next 

year or two.  These lines will skirt our city limits 

right now within about a mile and a quarter of the 

city.  We do have some businesses on the Route 3 part 

going south, and that at this time is really the only 

concern of the city of Red Bud is how it will affect 

us in the future.  

I probably won't see it happen but 

from the city standpoint we have to look forward to 

what's going to happen down the road and that's the 

only concern the City has.  Thank you all for coming 

to Red Bud. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you, Mayor.  

Appreciate it.

Kathy Andria. 

MS. ANDRIA:  Good evening.  My name is Kathy 

Andria, K-A-T-H-Y, A-N-D-R-I-A.  I am president of 

the American Bottoms Conservancy and conservation 

chair of the Kaskaskia River Sierra Club.  Both 

organizations have members in Randolph, Monroe, St. 

Clair and Washington Counties through which the 
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transmission lines are proposed to go.  ABC and the 

Sierra Club work to protect the health of our 

citizens and our natural resources.  Both the health 

of our citizens and the health of our natural 

resources are threatened, as are property values, by 

the construction of this project.  I am talking about 

the transmission lines as currently proposed.  

We respectfully request that you 

require the transmission lines, where feasible, to be 

placed underground and require rerouting of the lines 

to avoid fragile parched areas, hills, prairies, 

habitat for threatened and endangered species, and 

especially homes and schools.  Aerial would bring a 

negative health impact from the high voltage power 

lines to our citizens and lifestyle.  I believe 

Mr. Sabo has entered studies into the record on that 

issue.  Studies indicate that transmission lines can 

cause all kinds of health problems.  Why take a 

chance with our lives?  

It is my understanding that 

aboveground lines require clearing a 150-foot swath 

of land, whether wetlands, hills, prairies, forests, 
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farmlands or backyards, whereas just a ten foot area 

would need to be cleared if the lines were put 

underground.  While the initial cost is indeed 

higher, maintenance would be lower and people, 

animals, habitat and property values would be 

protected.  

Ameren and Peabody can well afford to 

bury the lines.  Peabody is the largest coal company 

in the world, with $4.6 billion in revenue last year, 

profits up 150 percent and projected to be even 

higher this year.  Peabody is paying for 90 percent 

of the cost of these lines.  

Ameren and Peabody could also take a 

southern route, bypassing the sensitive lands.  Their 

proposed route is pretty much a straight shot, not 

much planning or paying respect to the land or its 

inhabitants.  That would cost more.  

I have been working for three years to 

get various permitting agencies to require controls 

on the Prairie State plant that would be protective 

of the health of various citizens, our water, our air 

and our land.  Peabody has fought every suggestion 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY
 Two North LaSalle Street   Chicago, Illinois  60602

(312) 782-4705

48

for more protective controls.  It would cost more.  

It has fought the use of 21st century air control 

technology, as the gentleman from the coal industry 

was saying.  Gasification plants would be cleaner but 

it would cost more.  

It has asked for and received state 

money.  And after bragging about all the economic 

benefits to our local economy, sued Washington County 

and asked for and received reduced taxes, including 

for the school and the fire district.  They have 

fought every imaginable grandfathering -- it has 

sought every imaginable grandfathering and exemption 

from requirements, all conceivably to save a buck.  

It has even applied for a permit to mine lands that 

the miners say is mined out so that it can build a 

coal combustion wasteland building.  

I captured the need prescribing an 

IEPA solid waste landholder permit.  There will be 

two 100-feet tall mountains of toxic coal combustion 

waste, 1300 acres, and this is right just north of 

the beautiful new shooting complex at Sparta.  What a 

good neighbor.  
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Peabody located the proposed Prairie 

State plant 1.8 miles outside the St. Clair County 

line.  1.8 miles outside the area doesn't make it -- 

there is not attainment for failing to meet federal 

air quality standards for component fine 

particulates.  Two miles closer and it would have 

been required to fund more protective controls.  It 

would have cost more.  

Because of its location Peabody will 

have to construct two 14-mile long pipelines to 

withdraw and discharge river into the Kaskaskia 

River, discharge about 30 million gallons a day.  

Available water supply in the Kaskaskia River is 

roughly 50 million gallons per day.  Peabody is 

taking 60 percent of this.  

All of these impacts, including this 

one for transmission lines, should have been 

evaluated through an environmental impact statement 

subject to proper public scrutiny.  Instead, the 

process has been piecemealed through permit after 

permit, public hearing after public hearing, and we 

the citizens of Illinois are the losers.  Yes, it 
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might have cost more but we might have learned the 

true cost of Prairie State to Illinois taxpayers and 

the environment.  

We have not asked and are not asking 

that the Prairie State plant not be built.  We have 

asked that it be built cleanly, with respect for the 

citizens who live here and for our air, water, land, 

animals, our property values and especially our 

children.  That would not result in fewer jobs.  

It appears that most of the customers 

for the Prairie State plant will be from other 

states.  We are asking you that you protect Illinois 

citizens and Illinois lands, rather than those who 

live in other states.  It is only fair and Peabody 

can afford it.  

Thank you for your consideration of 

our request, and Senator Lectenfeld and 

Representative Reitz for your requesting this 

hearing.  

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  If I butcher your name 

tonight, let me get out of town, please.  Beverly 
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Cowell. 

MS. COWELL:  My name is Beverly, B-E-V-E-R-L-Y, 

Cowell, C-O-W-E-L-L.  I really didn't think I would 

speak tonight.  The gentleman over there said if I 

had anything to say.  But I wanted to say I would 

certainly like to have a copy of that last lady's 

speech.  I think it is wonderful.  

And I don't want to be a pioneer.  

That other gentleman said we could all be pioneers if 

we let this go on.  Well, I don't want to be a 

pioneer.  I don't want to pay 200 people working in 

the coal mines.  I don't want to be a mine aunt.  

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Dan Pigg.

MR. PIGG:  I decline.  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Stanley Sauer.

MR. SAUER:  Stanley, S-T-A-N-L-E-Y  S-A-U-E-R, 

Sauer, and, gosh, I was hoping I would be farther 

down the list.  But thanks for coming to Red Bud.  As 

far as not being afraid to talk, well, if you hear a 

squeaking, that is it.  

A couple little comments.  I have a 
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dairy farm south of town.  This will affect me a 

great deal.  And, one, I am concerned about the 

health, property values.  I am concerned about my 

wife has a state licensed day care center.  This line 

will be approximately 225 feet from that.  It is 

going to be 125 feet from my buildings where I said 

was my dairy business.  

It will certainly hurt me quite a bit.  

Right through the center of my farm.  It has been in 

the family 125 years.  I just know real estate values 

are going to plummet.  Right now, yeah, I farm.  I 

don't intend to develop it but, like Mayor Horrell 

says, who knows 30 years from now.  I am sure my kids 

would say, whoa, somebody is going to give me the big 

bucks here and we are going to build houses out here.  

Anything can happen.  I mean, it just generally 

messes everything up.  

As far as the gentlemen, yeah, we are 

going to make some -- create some jobs for coal 

miners, which I have nothing against.  I have got 

some good friends who are coal miners.  But there are 

a lot of people sitting out here whose lives are 
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really going to be turned upside down if this 

happens, and I think we need to consider a lot of 

these people also, whose lives are going to be 

totally -- and also, say in my situation, it is 

really going to turn things upside down, I guess you 

have to say.  Other than that, somebody else can have 

my other minute.  

Thanks for coming to Red Bud.  It is a 

lot closer to us than going to Springfield.

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Roger Roscow.  

MR. ROSCOW:  I decline and will let my lawyer 

do the speaking. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Marvin Rosenberg.

MR. ROSENBERG:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Dennis Rodenberg.  

MR. RODENBERG:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Faye M-I-D-D. 

MS. MIDD:  That's mine.  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Folks, if you don't 

speak, I have nothing to take back.  It is not a 

threat.  I am just, you know, stating a fact.  
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Ronald W-I-N-T-H, 7820 State Route 

154.  

MR. WINTH:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Steve Uffelmann.

MR. UFFELMANN:  Steve Uffelmann, 

U-F-F-E-L-M-A-N-N.  I really wasn't planning on 

speaking tonight.  But one thing that I have a 

problem with, when they say they are looking at the 

best economic interest of the landowners, the farmers 

or whatever, you know, they come across the river at 

Rush Island and they do all those hooks to get around 

the Illinois Department of Conservation, and then it 

is basically a straight line until you get to the 

place on the Kaskaskia River which would cross the 

least state ground.  I mean, if it was -- they are 

projected to be in the best interest of the farming 

and housing or whatever on that route, it would seem 

to me that that route should look more like it does 

in the first 15 miles or whatever to the left.  It 

can't be a straight line all the way through and 

affect the least amount of people.  

I reiterate what Stanley says.  I live 
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next to him.  I live on a bee farm.  It pretty well 

disrupts your livelihood.  You know, I am going to be 

looking out the window.  It is not as close to my 

house as Stanley's, but you are going to see a 

130-foot pole.  Like Stanley says, you don't know 

what the future is going to bring.  It is going to do 

immense damage to property values.  But more than 

that it is going to destroy the livelihood for a lot 

of people.  

As Stanley said, there are studies 

that do economic impacts on dairy herds, on bee 

herds.  I am sure that affects people, too, when it 

hits that close to home.  And if Stanley's house is 

less than 200 foot from that line, that's poor 

planning.  In fact, I think something else could be 

done.  There is ways that they could make hooks and 

be on ground that was less developed.  That's just my 

opinion.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Tom Sterbel, 

S-T-E-R-B-E-L. 

MR. STERBEL:  I decline. 
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HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Michael Sabo.

MR. SABO:  Mike Sabo, M-I-K-E  S-A-B as in boy 

-O.  I would like to start by thanking the ICC for 

this opportunity to speak.  For those of you who are 

not intervenors in this case and have missed the 

questions that ICC has been posing to Ameren, I would 

like to highlight one of their questions that 

captures Ameren's point of view about our concerns.  

The question, paraphrased, was:  Can 

Ameren be closer to finding a route that satisfies 

the concerns of all the intervening parties?  A 

reasonable question to you and I.  Ameren's 

attorney's response:  "Objection".  

Well, I have objections of my own.  In 

June of 2005, Dr. Gerald Draper, an Oxford Childhood  

Cancer researcher published a study in the British 

Journal of Medicine that after studying nearly 30,000 

childhood cancer cases, concluded children living 

within 600 yards of overhead high voltage 

transmission lines are subjected to an increased risk 

of leukemia.  Ameren's public relations folks will 

tell you that their studies show the power lines are 
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completely harmless.  

Whether the utility companies are 

following in the footsteps of the tobacco industry 

and funding studies to counteract the claims of 

independent researchers remains to be seen.  

What is undeniable is that the 

controversy surrounding these proposed power lines 

will reduce our property values dramatically, up to 

38 percent as shown in one study.  Property 

devaluation will extend up to a half a mile on either 

side of the transmission corridor.  Yet Ameren is 

offering only a one-time payment for an easement that 

is 75 feet from their line.  

My neighbor has received an offer for 

his land that is less per acre than he paid for it 

nearly two decades ago.  Ameren is offering 

landowners a fraction of what their land is worth 

today for a project that will devalue their land 

forever.  

In testimony submitted last week, the 

ICC Staff is recommending the Ameren route running 

behind my barn.  I have been out in the field road.  
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I have looked at the stakes, surveyed the stakes that 

they put there.  Ameren's easement misses my property 

line by a few feet.  So while I should continue 

paying taxes on a depressed parcel of land with lower 

resale potential, they don't even have to offer my 

family the measly compensation they are offering 

others.  This is just wrong.  

Ameren can bury the lines and mitigate 

these effects, but they tell us it is too expensive 

and it would raise our rates.  What they don't 

mention is that this line is specifically for 

exporting power from southern Illinois and isn't for 

our consumption.  Ask any farmer here what happens 

when there is too much corn being sold at the 

elevators.  The price falls.  We are building a line 

to export power, yet Ameren has already said that 

they are raising our rates by nearly 50 percent 

starting in January.  How do they justify this?  

I am not against the transmission line 

being in my backyard per se.  But if it is going to 

be there, Ameren shoulders the responsibility to 

build it in such a way that not one Illinois citizen 
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bears the burden so that those states bordering 

southern Illinois may benefit from lower utility 

rates.  That is the justice we seek.  

Not a single state representative nor 

county commission has filed with the ICC as an 

intervenor on our behalf.  I stand here this evening 

reaching out to our public officials and offering 

what little help I can do to counter Ameren's public 

relations machine.  While in the navy, I was 

responsible for distributing every electron generated 

by a pair of 500 plus megawatt nuclear reactors.  In 

addition to my bachelors degree, I have a certificate 

in urban and regional planning.  Finally, while a 

university faculty member, I operated magnets at the 

National High Magnetic Field Laboratory.  I think I 

can help balance, at least with layman's knowledge, 

several issues concerning Ameren's proposal.  

Regardless of whether our elected 

officials take up our cause, we must stand together, 

trust in each other and trust in our neighbors who 

may be seated on juries at any eminent domain 

proceedings.  As Ameren professional negotiators 
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attempt to isolate us in one-on-one negotiations, 

know that I stand with you and I hope that you stand 

with me.  Thank you.  

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Phyllis Bixby.  

MS. BIXBY:  I decline.  My attorney will speak 

for me. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  John Butcher.  

MR. BUTCHER:  I decline.

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Larry Marquardt.

MR. MARQUARDT:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  James Seboldt. 

MR. SEBOLDT:  James Seboldt, J-A-M-E-S  

S-E-B-O-L-D-T.  I would just like to say I have heard 

a lot about burdens tonight, and the way this line is 

zigzagging around the whole area, there's going to be 

a hard burden put on my family.  And still all I'd 

really like to see be done is for you to please keep 

this line away from our houses, my family houses, my 

friends and my neighbors' houses.  That is all I ask.  

Thank you.  

(Applause.)
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HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you.  Scott 

Tweedy.

MR. TWEEDY:  My name is Scott, S-C-O-T-T, 

Tweedy, T-W-E-E-D-Y.  I am an assistant business 

manager of the International Brotherhood of 

Electrical Workers, Local 309, in Collinsville, 

Illinois.  A large portion of these transmission 

lines will be going across our jurisdiction.  I want 

to go on record and have a few questions for the ICC 

and Ameren.  I look forward to the answers through 

the process and more questions will follow in 

writing.  

First, Ameren has asked the Commission 

to approve the creation of a new public Ameren 

Illinois transmission company called Ameren Transco 

that will jointly build the transmission lines with 

AmerenIP.  

Second, Ameren has asked the 

Commission to approve a joint operating agreement 

that allows AmerenIP and Ameren Transco to use Ameren 

Services Company to oversee the actual construction 

and operation of the proposed transmission lines.  
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Who will Ameren use to build the proposed electric 

transmission lines?  Will Ameren use its own IBEW 

employees to do the construction work or will they 

use a contractor?  What makes the contractor 

qualified to do this construction work?  Who will 

Ameren use to maintain this proposed electric 

transmission lines?  Will Ameren use its own IBEW 

employees to do the maintenance work or will it use a 

contractor?  What makes the contractor qualified to 

do maintenance work?  Where will this new Ameren 

Transco be headquartered?  How many employees will 

Ameren Transco employ?  Will Ameren Transco employ 

personnel to construct, maintain and operate the 

proposed electric transmission lines?  If Ameren 

Transco will employ such personnel, then what skills 

does a person need to have to obtain employment with 

Ameren Transco?  How much will these new jobs pay?  

It is my understanding the Ameren 

Services Company will be in charge of the actual 

construction and operation of the proposed 

transmission lines.  Why is not AmerenIP going to be 

in charge of the actual construction and operation of 
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these lines?  

And last, who will be doing the line 

clearance work for the proposed transmission lines?  

Will it be Ameren employees or a contractor?  If it 

is a contractor that will be used, which one?  Thank 

you.  

(Applause.) 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Larry Glasscock.

MR. GLASSCOCK:  My name is Larry Glasscock, 

L-A-R-R-Y   G-L-A-S-S-C-O-C-K.  My biggest problem is 

I live about two miles from this project that is 

going up.  And the power lines aren't going to go 

through my property but they are going to be adjacent 

to it.  The lines are going to be about 200 feet from 

my house.  Not only is it going to go past my house, 

they are also going to cut a hundred foot swath of 

timber which is all pure oak and hickory.  This 

gentleman over here says that the first thing we are 

going to do is try to keep from destroying our trees 

and what not, and within two miles they have already 

decided to cut a swath through this timber.  

I am asking that all you have to do is 
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move over to the next field which is a crop field 

which Peabody owns and they wouldn't have to do 

anything.  It would be a clear shot.  They could save 

money, wouldn't have to cut trees or nothing.  

I never got any response from anybody.  

I can't find anybody that would tell me if they will 

work with us people, if they will even give us an 

idea as to will they work with us, will they make -- 

what's the word here -- if they will just work with 

us to come up with a solution to ease everybody's 

minds as far as what's going to happen.  

That's really all I have got to say.  

There is no reason why they can't move these lines 

one way or another further away from other people's 

properties and hopefully make everybody happy.  Thank 

you very much.

(Applause.) 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Larry did an excellent 

job in speaking tonight.  Not everyone gets up before 

a crowd of people and speaks all the time, but this 

isn't a crowd of people.  These are your friends and 

neighbors.  So just remember that when I call your 
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name.  

Cathi S-C-H-M-I-E-G.  

MS. SCHMIEG:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Lucas Liefer, 

L-I-E-F-E-R.

 MR. LIEFER:  Lucas Liefer, L-U-C-A-S   

L-I-E-F-E-R.  I live inside a home in Baldwin and I 

have a farm just south of Baldwin; well, my father 

does.  And it is in the proposed red route that goes 

just south of Baldwin.  And people on the green route 

have been trying to push it off on us, and I am here 

to say that we don't want it either, whether they 

think we do or not.  And there has got to be a better 

way for Ameren to do things.  It is cutting 

completely diagonally across our farm.  It is going 

to be such a permanent structure, let's do it right.  

Let's work with the property lines, go along property 

lines, where roads are, and work with the people.  It 

is disgusting what's going on.  That's all I have to 

say.

(Applause.) 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Jason Woolard.
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MR. WOOLARD:  He already asked the questions 

that I had also.

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Okay.  Jeffrey 

Gueberl, G-U-E-B-E-R-L. 

MR. GUEBERT:  Jeff Guebert, G-U-E-B-E-R-T.  We 

hear a lot of these guys talk about their jobs, how 

many jobs.  Well, everybody, when you say jobs, 

everybody thinks open up the suitcase and give me 

cash.  Well, that's just where we are tonight.  

Millions of dollars are going to benefit Illinois and 

millions of dollars of this and that.  Well, if 

Illinois is going to benefit so greatly on this, I 

just can't understand why we can't use more of the 

public land to put this line on.  

I understand that most projects you 

can't do these kind of things because it is not 

public land you use.  But you go over there and you 

look at Baldwin.  From the power plant to the river 

there is power plant ground and Department of 

Conservation ground to use.  

Now, I know, oh, we can't do nothing 

to the conservation.  Well, I don't think the good 
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people that are doing this understand that where the 

Conservation Department got most of this ground is by 

taking it away from the people who was there before.  

Eminent domain, then they took it for a river 

project.  

How many people out here have been 

pushed aside already by the coal mines that is 

already out there that's land is being wasted?  How 

many people were pushed aside by the first power 

plant that sits in Baldwin?  And how many people is 

pushed aside already by this river project?  When is 

the public person of private property who sweats it 

out there and makes his living off this stuff going 

to get to say wait your turn.  That's the way it 

should be.  We have no rights any more.  You come in, 

I want it, move out of the way.  No, that ain't 

right.  

Mostly, I would say a good part of 

these places where this is going is open land and it 

was made open land, it was kept open land because it 

stayed in the same family for all the years.  Most of 

the land probably was in the same family since before 
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electricity was even invented.  That don't mean 

nothing to the people that want to go through there 

now.  

My personal opinion is use as much of 

the public land as possible.  If they are going to be 

the ones to benefit from it, then they should be 

using it, no matter if it is Conservation or Dynegy 

Energy owns it or whoever owns it.  Use that land for 

the public, before the private owners.  That being 

said, if you can't do that or don't want to do that, 

which seems to be the case, you should try and use 

the least amount of land as possible.  

Now, I am going to hear later on, I am 

sure, how over there in Baldwin, I don't know about 

the rest over here, but from the Baldwin power plant 

to the river complex there is people going back and 

forth like we just heard somebody talk about.  By 

going the route, the red route, that people are going 

to say they want to do, you are going to use up eight 

extra miles of land, is what I am told.  That is 

almost 150 acres of ground in an eight-mile stretch.  

There would be more extra ground used than there 
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would be in the crop that is already planted.  And to 

say that a line is going to go to the southwest 

starts out by going almost two miles to the 

northeast, just doesn't make sense to me.  

And you are going to hear about 

development.  All the development has come on the 

east side or the west side of Baldwin.  It is coming 

this way.  Well, there hasn't been nothing developed 

around Baldwin in 25 years, 15, 20, 25 years.  And 

the last piece of ground that got sold at Baldwin on 

the west side was bought by a farmer right next to 

city limits; not a developer.  They ain't buying over 

there.  

And I seen last week or a week before, 

all politicians in the area, the governor, come down 

here to talk about the shooting complex.  Big 

development, going to boom.  Then we heard about the 

power plant.  But this was going to make restaurants, 

hotels and what not.  Well, I don't believe it is 

going to come and I don't want to see it come.  But  

that's what we're getting.  Then I have to shoo off 

the portion to get rid of when they come after my 
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land.  I don't want to see it.  

But if Baldwin is going to develop, it 

ain't coming this way because the power plant and 

Conservation own everything to your northwest.  There 

is darn little left the other way.  

But if there is one thing that is out 

there that is going to fill up that way, it probably 

will be toward the shooting complex.  I cannot 

understand why you would want to brag about a $50 

million operation and spending more, and then want to 

put up a power line like this just a couple miles 

away where you can shoot a power tower from this 

route.  No, that don't make no sense.  

And they ask is there houses on this 

side?  Yeah, there is houses.  There is houses on the 

other side, too.  Doesn't look like there is many, 

but you have got to figure you are going eight extra 

miles.  There is houses out there.  There is family 

farms out there.  And even if somebody don't live on 

a farm, that don't mean that they are not going to 

know everything in their mind and every post.  That 

line is sitting on their ground.  They have got to 
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know everything whether I see the post or not.  

People are saying, well, you only pull a plow around 

it twice a year.  If you ain't been in farming at all 

or you ain't been in farming long enough to know you 

don't just go out there twice a year, no, that ain't 

right either.  

So that's just what I have to say 

tonight.  Don't -- it ain't just over on this side.  

There is more -- just the excuses are the same from 

one side of that town to the other and nobody's 

property is any better than anybody else's.  So it 

shouldn't just be pushed from one side to the other 

for excuses that ain't there.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Leon Proctor.

MR. PROCTOR:  I decline.

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Derrick Huebner.

MR. HUEBNER:  My name is Derrick Huebner, 

D-E-R-R-I-C-K  H-U-E-B-N-E-R.  I only have one farm 

that this line actually goes through, but what irks 

me about it is there has got to be a better route and 

there has got to be better way, not necessarily the 
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red one, not necessarily the green one.  What irks me 

is they are paralleling a road which is probably 200 

feet off the road and going 3,000 feet through my 

farm.  Why can't they be on the road or why can't 

they build on the other side of the road anyway for a 

hundred feet?  That's my question. 

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Sharon Sabo.  

MS. SABO:  My name is Sharon Sabo, and I have 

two things to say before we go any farther.  You 

don't take coal in your car so I don't care, you 

can't compare coal to oil.  That's number one.  

Facts are not fears.  So if you think 

it is fear, maybe you should review the dictionary.  

I have prepared a speech here today 

but I wanted to talk for a few minutes before I read 

it.  There is not much special about me, nothing 

different than all of you out there.  My background 

does not provide a technical aspect to this 

situation.  My specialty is in military 

communications and intelligence, education and 

parenthood.  I grew up in a far away place, 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY
 Two North LaSalle Street   Chicago, Illinois  60602

(312) 782-4705

73

California.  Life is faster there and more cutthroat.  

You learn to survive or you choose to leave.  When I 

moved here with my husband to his old stomping 

grounds, I found out something amazing.  There are 

communities here bonded together by common goals.  

They support one another.  That's why I am happy to 

see all of you here.  Whether you are here out of 

property value concerns, health concerns or just 

tired of being pushed along with somebody else's 

agenda behind your back, you have shown up.  

When I served in the Navy, my job was 

to facilitate communications among individuals to 

ensure the safety of all.  As to the intelligence 

part, we looked at the pieces of the puzzle and put 

them together to try to figure out who, what, where, 

when and why in a situation.  Then we had to come up 

with a plan to react or prevent developmental 

failure.  We were called a mission design team.  I 

have looked at the pieces presented by Ameren and 

some by Peabody, and all I can say is they aren't 

even close to creating a valid picture of what will 

be accepted in our communities.  
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I reside in Marissa, Illinois.  We are 

all here today because of a line.  This kind of a 

line.  When my three year old draws a line, he's got 

to show everybody.  He is proud of his  

accomplishment.  That is, unless he has drawn the 

line somewhere that it shouldn't be.  In that case he 

does everything within his power to hide that line.  

Puzzle piece number one, in 2001 

Illinois Power, now Ameren, drew a line.  Then they 

hid it from the farm holders, local revenue and 

general public.  Until November of 2005 most of us 

were not even aware that this line existed or where 

it was going to be placed.  

Add in a December 7 Ameren-sponsored 

workshop, right here in this room, right against that 

wall.  We asked Ameren why we hadn't been notified 

about this line which is to be from here to the line 

in the middle of the back of that road, our property.  

Their response was that our property, shown on a 2 by 

3 foot map, was an abandoned farm house.  Fine.  

Puzzle piece number two, we have been 

living and building on our house for over four years.  
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Ameren insured us they were going to take it to their 

project design team.  Remember, I have done this 

before, all right?  They are going to take the input 

along and they will be back to talk about it.  So far 

the only correspondence that we have had from Ameren 

has been our bill for the last seven months.  

Puzzle piece number three,  

independent studies are available that show a link to 

childhood leukemia.  I have four children here.  The 

California Electric and Magnetic Field Program 

released a study in 1999.  There is also very strong 

evidence to a link between a magnetic field to 

Alzheimer's and Lou Gehrig's disease.  Also, the 

suppression of Tamoxifen, a drug used to treat 

cancer, an increase in breast cancer, child growth 

development.  

And I also have a dairy.  I have 

goats.  They are not as big as cows and that's why I 

got them because I am scared of the big ones.  But 

when they are in utero, their development is going to 

be different.  It goes quick, it goes fast, and I am 

going to lose part of my livelihood for the 
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convenience of a line that was easy for someone to 

draw.  

Based on these studies a bipartisan 

group in the state of Connecticut passed a law in 

2004 requiring the burial of lines exactly like this 

transmission line.  The state of Florida also has a 

proposal in legislative consideration right now.  

Puzzle number four, this line has to 

go somewhere.  We all agree.  But by burying the 

line, which will cost more, if you make 150 or 

whatever billions and millions of dollars you make -- 

I am just a farmer, I don't know -- but by spending 

the extra money and increasing community support for 

it, wouldn't that make more sense?  No, not to 

Ameren.  Ameren would be improving our infrastructure 

and help out.  

A study released February 7 by their 

own industry states that if we were to do a step by 

step citing procedures more constant -- produces more 

constant decisions based on all stated rationale.  

This means looking at all available options, working 

with local government, local landowners and any 
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development plan that happens to involve the use of 

our property.  

But Ameren hasn't done that.  Why?  I 

would like to stand up here and use my three year 

old's state of mind.  "Neener, neener, neener, you 

are a liar."  But I can't do that because I am an 

adult and I don't have an attorney here with me.  All 

I can say is review carefully, before any approval is 

given, all of the information.  Make an informed 

decision based on the truth, not red herring 

arguments presented to you.  Thank you again for all 

coming out.  It wasn't easy for me either.  

(Applause.) 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Dan Trost. 

MR. TROST:  My name is Dan Trost, T-R-O-S-T, 

and I appreciate the chance to get up here and talk 

along with everyone else.  But the one question I 

have that keeps coming back to me, why should I even 

get up here?  Because I have attended numerous 

meetings and I just wondered maybe tonight if the 

opinion of everybody has changed, not everybody, but 

the majority of people.  And I would like the answer 
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to this question maybe even before we can leave here 

tonight.  I think it would satisfy a lot of people.  

And the answer to it is of all the people that has 

been contacted, what percentage, how many people, 

agreed to go along with this.  

And to make a comment on a couple of 

other people's comments and managerial positions, as 

far as what the price of gas compared to what this 

coal is going to do, the only people that's going to 

benefit is the people that's going to make the power.  

The users, the end users, as we all are in this room, 

we are not going to benefit from this.  The state -- 

it's a known fact that's been commented on by 

numerous people, that this state is not going to 

benefit from the power.  This state is going to 

benefit by the jobs that are created by making this 

power plant.  That's the only benefit that I see and 

hear from anybody that has ever spoken.  

I appreciate the people that are in 

authority, the senators, the representatives, in 

deciding for our state because it is also known that 

southern Illinois really doesn't exist when we get 
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north of I80, but at least we have the opportunity to 

do this.  And it is going to inject millions of 

dollars into the economy.  

That may be true and it may not be 

true.  But I know one thing that's true.  We are only 

going to get paid once, one time, for something 

that's going to be on our property for whoever knows 

how long, perpetuity, I guess.  Well, does anybody in 

this room think that's fair?  I would like that 

question to be answered also.  

I would like to say a lot of other 

things, but it is just repetitious of so many other 

people's views.  So again I thank you for the 

opportunity to talk.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Steve Wright. 

MR. WRIGHT:  My name is Steve Wright, 

W-R-I-G-H-T.  I would like to point out that, as 

Peabody told us, we have all of this coal under 

Illinois.  And I think that the ICC needs to tread 

very carefully as a pioneer, and they need to get 

this right.  This is the future of Illinois and there 
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will be more power plants and more power lines, and 

more problems here.  And this is an opportunity to 

get it right the first time.  That's really all I 

have to say.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Janice Redohl. 

MS. REDOHL:  Janice Redohl, J-A-N-I-C-E   

R-E-D-O-H-L.  And initially when we heard about this 

project, the proposed plan was -- the proposed plan, 

the green route, was supposed to be across the street 

from us, and now it has moved onto our property and 

just between me and my husband and our seven 

children.  So it will affect our house and our 

property value.  And if it is possible, the red route 

or the brown route wouldn't affect us so much.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Scott.  

MR. REDOHL:  My names is Scott Redohl, 

S-C-O-T-T   R-E-D-O-H-L.  As my wife said, we have 

seven children in our home.  Two or three routes run 

through our ground.  I would like to thank the Sabos 

for all the information they put out and in for all 
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of us to read.  We were well within those 600 yards 

that you are talking about, so we definitely have got 

health issues, health concerns, property value 

concerns.  I don't know, you know, that the red route 

is the route to go or not, but I think that everybody 

involved needs to find a route that is going to have 

the least amount of impact to people's residences and 

lifestyle.  That's all I have to say.  

(Applause.) 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Dennis P-H-F-G-L-I or 

L-T-Y.  I bet I butchered that.

MR. PHEGLEY:  Yeah, most people do.  Dennis 

Phegley, P-H-E-G-L-E-Y.  I have some property out 

east, 20 acres, that I bought and it is something I 

have always dreamed of owning.  And when I bought 

that five years ago, I was isolated from everything.  

There wasn't a house probably within a half mile of 

me out there.  And then I wake up one day and find 

out I am going to get a power plant in the back of my 

property back there.  

I bought it with the intention of 

hunting on it and target shooting.   I like to shoot.  
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I had about 12 or 13 acres of woods that I could hunt 

in, my wife, myself and my son.  And now Ameren is 

going to go through there and take about 40 percent 

of that hunting property away from me.  And I have 20 

acres total and that's about 20 percent of my 

property.  

And I heard one guy get up here and 

say, well, we all have to make sacrifices.  Well, 

that may be true.  I may have to sacrifice my ground 

before this is over with.  But that doesn't mean I 

have to sacrifice my property values, too.  I feel 

like Ameren needs to step up to the plate and realize 

that they are going to depreciate people's property 

values greatly by doing this.  

I heard another guy get up here.  What 

was your name?  Robert, the first guy up here and he 

said you can't hear, see, smell electricity.  Well, 

when you can see those 150-foot power lines up there, 

you can certainly see it.  If you've ever smelled a  

motor or lines or anything burn up, you can smell it 

and you will remember what it smells like.  If you 

have ever heard a power line sing or a transformer 
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hum, then you know what it sounds like.  So I would 

just like to clarify that.  You know, it sounds good 

that you can't see, hear, or smell it, but you 

certainly can.  

And that's all I have got to say.  I 

would just like to see Ameren step up to the plate 

and realize that they are going to depreciate these 

property values.  And they are coming out with these 

negotiations, they call them, but it seems like it is 

just a flat rate, this is what we are going to pay, 

and that's their negotiation, and it isn't.  That's 

all I've got.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Kenneth, and your 

spelling looks like a doctor's.  H something junior.  

Are you a doctor?  

MR. HARTMAN:  My name is Kenneth Hartman,  

K-E-N-N-E-T-H  H-A-R-T-M-A-N, Jr.  And I guess the 

first thing, I am frustrated tonight.  The guys from 

Ameren and Peabody, you know, you stood up here for 

half an hour and talked about how we need the plant, 

we need jobs and we need coal, and I agree with you.  
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But the thing is, you didn't talk about what we are 

talking about, the routes.  How did you pick the 

routes?  Why did you go where you went?  I haven't 

heard that the time whole time.  I've been to about 

four or five meetings.  I have looked at the areas we 

are talking about, Monroe County, Randolph County.  

They are right next to St. Louis, a lot of economic 

development, a lot of farmers, a lot of livestock.  

And I don't understand how you can just say that, 

well, it is not going to hurt the livestock, it is 

not going to hurt the family farms, it is not going 

to hurt economic development in the future.  Ground 

keeps going up and up here on Waterloo and Red Bud, 

but yet you stand there and have the Commerce 

Commission get behind you.  Yeah, we need jobs; we 

need the coal.  But you didn't tell us what we really 

come here to hear.  Why did you pick the routes?  Why 

are these routes better than the other routes?  

That's what the Commission wants to know, don't you?

I mean, this is frustrating.  I mean, 

I am looking at the route that they picked, they are 

zigzagging all over.  They are trying to hire their 
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own folks.  They go through sink holes.  There are 

some endangered species in the area which supposedly 

is right next to it, not in that area.  Then you go 

through how many homes?  Here this home, I have got a 

friend of mine just bought 27 acres a couple of years 

ago because his son wants to build a house.  Now 

there is about three or four sink holes on the 27 

acres.  Ameren came to his house and said, well, we 

want to go through here, and the only real place we 

can put a pole is right in the middle of the ridge in 

between sink holes and that was his house site.  Now, 

what is he supposed to do?  He spent big money.  

Well, we are going to pay you for four acres out of 

the 27 but that is where the house cite is at.  He 

said, well, what am I supposed to build on?  Well, 

you can build near the sink hole.  Well, it is the 

law in Monroe County that you can't build in a sink 

hole.  So they ought to buy his whole 27 acres, as 

far as I am concerned.   

The other thing I am frustrated, we 

have farm ground and I don't understand some of the 

discussion I have had and I think they worked on 
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drawing it maybe a little closer to the lines, but 

why not put the line on the property line, you know, 

put it 80 feet on mine and then 75 feet on another 

person's so it is down the center of the property 

line.  You can drive down it.  With agriculture you 

are going to have compaction problems.  So why not 

have the compaction on the property line, instead of 

out in the middle of the field?  Put it on the 

property line.  I don't think people would object as 

much if it is on a property line.  Put it next to a 

road like these gentlemen over here talked about.  If 

you have road easements, you have building lines, you 

have it next to the roads -- you can't build 

something right there anyway.  So put it there.  

That's another frustration.  

Some of the other things I have heard, 

you know, we talk about being in Wisconsin.  We used 

to milk cows, and I know some people in Wisconsin 

that had problems with stray voltage and they proved 

it.  It is a court case.  It is there in Washington 

and in Wisconsin with dairy.  So I keep hearing there 

is no problems with it.  How come in Wisconsin they 
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have proved this?  

We have GPS equipment with agriculture 

with farming.  We use GPS for guidance.  We use GPS 

for site maps.  My concern is I don't know next to 

these lines, I use Coast Guard signals, what's going 

to happen when I go by with a tractor or the combine?  

Is that going to cause a problem as far as my GPS 

maps as far as geo-mapping or as far as parallel 

swapping when I am spraying?  These are things I 

really don't know.  And if it is over on the property 

line, it is a lot easier to deal with than if it is 

out in the middle of a field somewhere.

And also locate the poles someplace on 

a property line or on a corner or somewhere where you 

can put this somewhere way out in a field.  To me 

that would make sense, too.  But I just think that 

there were other routes and I still haven't heard why 

the route is what it is.  Why didn't they go with a 

different route that was more direct and didn't 

affect houses, didn't affect sink hole areas, didn't 

affect hunting areas.  I mean, state ground, well, 

there is animals on state ground but there is not 
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animals on people that own property that they hunt?  

I guess I am very frustrated with this.  

I would like to thank you folks for 

coming.  I would like to thank Senator Lechtenfeld 

and Representative Reitz for having us coming here 

but I am really clearly disgusted with the process.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Willis Harms. 

MR. HARMS:  W-I-L-L-I-S  H-A-R-M-S.  I am 

Willis Harms.  I am from Baldwin and I am on the 

village board of Baldwin.  And the only reason I came 

tonight is we heard rumors that we had something to 

do with -- the town actually had something to do with 

where this line is now proposed.  And I want to set 

the record straight, we had nothing to do with that.  

We did not endorse any of the routes that were 

proposed.  We don't like it going by the town as 

close as it does, but we realize that it probably is 

going to go there and there is nothing we can do to 

stop it.  But I just want people to know that we did 

not endorse it.  Thank you.

(Applause.)
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HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Mark Schilling. 

MR. MARK SCHILLING:  It's Mark, M-A-R-K 

S-C-H-I-L-L-I-N-G.  All I have got to say is they 

ain't talking about at these other meetings how the 

power doesn't affect anybody.  Being underneath them, 

I know for a fact that we have been underneath them 

with our trucks and stuff, and you take a beer can or 

a tin can and put it up against your truck and it 

will throw a little arc off, jumping back and forth.  

I know of another guy that parked his 

combine underneath there to get onto the top to get a 

sample out and he grabbed the ladder and actually got 

a little tingling from it.  I know another guy that 

had their four-wheelers under them, rolled them onto 

their trucks and crawled on there and they have 

actually gotten a little shock there, too.  So that's 

all I have got to say.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Matt Schilling?   

MR. MATT SCHILLING:  A hundred billion tons of 

coal, 3,000 years of supply of coal, pioneers were 

rewarded for their work when they went west and they 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

 SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY
 Two North LaSalle Street   Chicago, Illinois  60602

(312) 782-4705

90

were rewarded with their homestead and their 

property.  That's all I ask, that we be rewarded for 

pioneering these lines.  We need to be compensated 

with our reward for our 160 acres or whatever we can 

do for that.  Thank you.

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Mark Denison.  

MR. DENISON:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Harry Wetzel. 

MR. WETZEL:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Mike Reed. 

MR. REED:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Omer L-I-E-T-E-R. 

MR. LIETER:  I decline. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Ken Gegel.

MR. GEGEL:  I decline.

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Paul Evans.

MR. EVANS:  My name is Paul Evans, E-V-A-N-S.  

I wish to thank Senator Lechtenfeld and 

Representative Reitz for this opportunity to speak 

tonight and hear everyone's concerns.  I am an 

attorney representing a number of landowners along 
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Spring Town Road in Baldwin, Illinois.  That is a 

road that I grew up on and I have known most of these 

people since I have been a child.  My sister lives in 

Baldwin, Illinois, so I have a personal interest in 

this.  My clients are intervening landowners.  

Earlier we were told of the criteria 

that was to be used in determining this routing map.   

They were presented to us in descending order of 

importance.  It was to avoid existing homes and 

public use buildings, to avoid incorporated 

municipalities, then to avoid trees, wetlands and 

environmentally sensitive areas, historically 

designated properties and agricultural lands.  We 

were presented with maps and proposed routes.  

We have not been explained how the 

criteria was developed to reach these maps and these 

routes.  I note that one of the routes goes through 

the incorporated area of Baldwin.  This apparently is 

one of their primary goals that's to be avoided, yet 

it was selected as a preferred route.  

I note that among 12 properties owners 

that I represent who are adjoining neighbors, five 
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houses have this power line within 300 feet of it.  

Several of the homes have it coming much closer.  

Listening tonight of people here, that's not a rare 

occurrence.  

I note one of my clients that a shed 

on her property was listed as their home.  It happens 

to be the shed across from the line.  The home which 

is identified as the shed is closer to the line.  The 

results of this linear map seem to be highly 

incongruous with the criteria that we are told was 

met by this planning committee.  

There was an offer made to us tonight 

to respond to questions or get back to us with 

questions.  I have several questions.  What were the 

methods and procedures used to determine the facts 

upon which these line routes were met?  I hear that 

is a common frustration throughout tonight.  How were 

the distances determined?  Again, in my situation 

with my clients we have a power line very close to a 

house.  We have inaccuracies as far as we can 

determine them.  What was the methodology?  What was 

the procedure?  When was it done?  Who was the 
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personnel?  What factual data bases were used?  

I note some of the changes that were 

made in the volts area to avoid an environmentally 

sensitive area which I applaud and do not oppose.  I 

note that that area is not a linear line.  Given the 

criteria that is presented to us, I question how a 

linear line proposal can meet these criteria.  Given 

the long term impacts to all of the property owners 

gathered here tonight, be it their livelihood, be it 

their family traditions, many of these property 

owners have had the land in their family for more 

than a hundred years.  And I note in the testimony 

from some of the petitioners that that was a 

consideration in routing their lands.  What was done 

to determine the length of ownership of family farms?

I question why it is, and ask for a 

response, as to why there cannot be more sensitive 

data designed to produce a route map that does not go 

near the homesteads, does not cause the multiple harm 

that is feared and some people suggested that is 

proved.  And I would like for someone to provide 

responses to these questions.  I believe that the 
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routes that are presented tonight are not meeting the 

criteria stated, and that although I do recognize 

that per the Illinois Commerce Commission a least 

cost route is to be a factor, I do not believe it is 

the supreme factor.  I do not believe it is the 

factor that preempts all other factors, and I ask 

that these routes be changed to avoid being within 

1500 feet of homes and farmsteads and to accommodate 

all the concerns here about going along boundary 

lines of property rather than through homes.  Thank 

you.  

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Wilbert Schoenbeck. 

MR. SCHOENBECK:  W-I-L-B-E-R-T  

S-C-H-O-E-N-B-E-C-K.  Hi, I am William Schoenbeck.  I 

am a farmer, landowner.  I know I realize that we 

need this line and I realize that we can't stop it.  

The biggest losers are the farmers and the farmland 

owners because the lines are placed right through the 

best open farmland.  The power lines are not placed 

in areas like endangered wildlife or property lines 

or wetlands and so forth.  However, they go right 
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through the best open farmland with no respect for 

the farmer or the landowners, when they could go 

where it would not interfere with the farming 

operations so much.  With the farm equipment getting 

bigger all the time, it really makes good sense to 

place the line where it would not interfere with 

farming so much.  By the lines going through the open 

farmland, it restricts aerial spraying, big farm 

equipment operation, and I know the reason they go 

through the open farmland is because it is the 

cheapest and they have to deal with less opposition.  

The line very much devalues the farmland by going 

through the middle of the best farmland.  

I realize we need this line, but they 

could put -- like Kenny Hartman says, they could put 

it on property lines where it wouldn't interfere with 

our big farm equipment.  And it really devalues our 

farmland.  And we only get paid for this one time.  I 

realize we need this line.  I understand that.  I 

guess that's about all I have got to say.  Everything 

else has been pretty well covered.  Thank you very 

much.
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(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  I am going to go see 

if I can get the custodian to get us another battery 

for the mic because it is going out.  

Is there anybody in the audience that 

would like to speak on the record that didn't sign 

up?  Is there anyone else other than this gentleman?  

There is two.  Ron, is there any more over there?

I am going to take a few minutes out 

to see if she can get us another battery, and then I 

will be right back. 

(Whereupon the hearing was in a 

short recess.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Ladies and gentlemen, 

can we get started?  We are going to have to do 

without the mic.  We are going to have to be pretty 

quiet in here.  And I want to compliment you all 

tonight for coming up here and speaking.  I know 

exactly how hard it is to get before a crowd and 

speak.  

My first speaking engagement there 

were 10,000 people there.  And the thing that they 
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teach you in college is when you are speaking to a 

group, act like they are -- don't put this in the 

record -- act like they are naked.  Now, that's what 

they teach you in college.  They say act like they 

are all naked and then you are really not looking at 

them.  

I don't do that any more.  I look at 

people, but I know it is hard.  I know it has been 

very hard for you people tonight and I appreciate it.  

Because without your comments, we have nothing to go 

on.  We have absolutely nothing to go on.  

So I really do, I do appreciate it.  

And this gentleman sitting up here, he is first.  The 

gentleman in the back is second, and you are third, 

and then we will go into the question and answer 

period, okay. 

State your name and spell it.

MR. JONES:  Bobby Jones, B-O-B-B-Y  J-O-N-E-S.  

I live northeast of Marissa, close to this complex.  

Most of you I know are worried about one line.  I 

already have one line below me, and I can answer a 

lot of your questions on some of the things that I 
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have dealt with on that line.  Hopefully, I won't 

have to deal with them on this line, but.  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  You have got to speak 

real loud.

MR. JONES:  I am not a loud speaker.  Can you 

hear me now?  

I have got it over most of you; this 

is going to be my second line, will be my problem.  I 

have lived on the property for 65 years, 68 years 

actually, and it has been in my family for over a 

hundred years.  The property they are going through 

now is north of my house.  I have one south of my 

house.  

I have dealt with a lot of issues with 

Ameren and Illinois Power on that project.  

Unfortunately, they work on it two times a year.  

Basically, it is when their power outage is low and 

it is the muddy season.  So any of you that's farmers 

knows what that means.  

Me and my wife have picked up and 

worked to neat up their debris and stuff.  The people 

they hire to come in and work on their lines are very 
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inconsiderate of your property, I can tell you that.  

And I don't have anybody from Ameren to come out and 

go across the property.  

I have called the representative a 

week ago with some dealings I have got.  Now they 

come in and trimmed some trees.  They went through 

the property with the helicopter; they dropped the 

limbs down.  We were ready to plant a field and went 

over to plant it.  Me and my wife had to clean up 

tree limbs for approximately about 300 feet that they 

had dropped several days before so we could plant.  

We got that cleaned up and went to get the planter, 

and they come in with a helicopter and cut the trees 

again.  So I know some of the frustration you go 

through.  

They say electric won't hurt you.  I 

have seen it come down from the power line, hit the 

tree, and the damage it can do there.  My wife has 

got shocked from the combine, touching the combine.  

So I know there is some data on these lines.  And 

there is also some issues that, you know, to get the 

people to come in and get your ground back in order 
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after they come in and work on it.  Because, I mean, 

they hook a dozer on a truck and they go and they -- 

sometimes they don't notify you, you don't know when 

they are coming, they are just there.  And there 

needs to be some better relations with these people 

with the easements.  Because when they got the 

easements, it is just the same as they have got your 

ground.  That's what basically it is.  

The line is going to go across, maybe 

now it is going to go at an angle.  So maybe if it 

isn't a farm, nobody is planting.  With a line like 

that you are going to hit it numerous times across 

the field.  You have got issues with weeds and stuff 

going wild.  Nobody sprays it.  You have got to take 

care of that.  So these things are not pretty.  

A lot of people talk about jobs, but a 

lot of the work comes from farmers with these poles 

out there because he is the one that has to deal with 

the things that nobody else does.  And Ameren could 

have people come out and do that.  They hire people 

but there is nobody overseeing them.  They sit in 

their trucks half a day and read papers and so forth, 
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and they just don't -- they are not very reputable 

people for cleaning these projects up.  So it is back 

onto the farmer.  

And I have got a deal now where they 

cut trees up, saw them up.  They are supposed to 

mulch them.  They have got them laying next to the 

creek bank on each side.  The creek comes out and I 

am going to have them in my bean fields.  That's what 

I have got issue with now, is trying to get somebody 

to come out and get that cleaned up.  Otherwise, you 

are out there with the combine and you don't know 

where it is at.  And the Isen (sp) property, 

everybody knows what happened there then.  

And another thing on this whole 

project that really kind of gets me, on the east side 

of my property there is going to be a railroad track 

for the coal, for the fly ash to go out.  And I can't 

understand why this power line cannot be run on that 

Peabody's property on the same line that this coal 

train is.  It goes out into Peabody's ground and then 

goes to the power plant.  So it basically would all 

be on Peabody's ground instead of going across prime 
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farmland.  

I know there is an issue; they claim I 

have a water line, too, that is going across me.  And 

there is an issue that they have got to shield the 

water line to keep the power from hitting that line.  

There is a possibility there, when you 

go underneath it with the combine and whatever and 

the equipment, I know what it does to my GPS or my FM 

radio, the guy talking about that, I know what 

happens there.  If you are trying to listen to the 

ball game or something, that's gone.  So forget it 

when you get close to that line.  They come out with 

grounded lines and so forth.  It messed up our 

television in the house.  So there is some issues 

there.  

A lot of people think about jobs but 

it is the farmer out there that has to end up putting 

up with all these problems.

AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Do you have problems getting 

compensation for the clean up and things that you are 

talking about?  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  We are not in the 
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question and answer period.  So when we get there, I 

will allow him to answer those questions.

MR. JONES:  That's about all I have to say.  My 

wife and I have put a lot -- the line that's there 

now, they came in a few years ago and they had holes 

in the poles.  They plugged that with like tubes of 

caulking.  They wrapped it with Saran Wrap.  The 

Saran Wrap was off in the field.  The tubes of 

caulking were laying there at the pole.  The package 

that they opened up were laying there.  The people 

they hire just do not clean up their project.  There 

is nobody from Ameren that travels that and checks on 

them, and there needs to be somebody to check on 

these people that are doing their job.  The guys were 

there just recently.  It is pathetic the way they do.  

And there needs to be something from Ameren that 

controls that line, that they want the people working 

there.  And like I said, these guys that set 

underneath a shade tree a half a day, and I went down 

and pushed for two hours with the tractor loaded to 

get these limbs off the field so I can could plant 

that field.  That shouldn't be.  There should be some 
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consideration of the property owners there that are 

trying to farm this ground also.  

I thank you for letting me speak. 

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Thank you, Bobby.  

That was the CUB game you were listening to, wasn't 

it?

MR. JONES:  Well --

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Do you want to speak?

MR. KELLER:  My name is Bob Keller, 

K-E-L-L-E-R.  I guess I just got a few comments to 

make.  I have heard a lot of people that declined to 

make comments.  Hopefully, a lot of them I know; I 

know a lot of you people in here.  And hopefully this 

gentleman don't get the idea that you guys just 

didn't want to speak.  I think they was more because 

you thought you was signing up to be here at the 

meeting, rather than because you wanted to speak.  

Because I know a lot of the opinions of the people 

here in this building.  

One of the bad things that I see that 

Ameren has done a real good job at is pitting 
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neighbor against neighbor.  We have got red route 

against green route against brown route.  I don't 

think that was by accident.  You buy your property 

and that's what they pretty well done.  Shove it to 

my neighbors, I don't want the thing.  But I think 

more than that most people know I want to go home 

tonight from here and I am going to go into an air 

conditioned home and get a good night's sleep so I 

can go to work in the heat tomorrow.  But we all need 

electric.  We all realize that.  We all know it has 

got to go somewhere.  But all we have been doing at 

these meetings, at least some of the ones I have 

attended, is to ask Ameren to work with us.  We have 

concerns about how far these lines are from our 

house.  And I know in Monroe County, I know this for 

a fact, Monroe County Assessor's office, county 

office, has worked and tried to give Ameren some 

guidance on how they can move the line, just a very 

little, to move it away from people's homes.  I don't 

have any little children, but if I did, I sure 

wouldn't want a 345,000 volt line within 200 feet of 

my place.  
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I have fallen into the predicament of 

that there are a lot of people aren't here that this 

line is going to affect, that are not here tonight 

because they were not required to be notified by 

Ameren because their property is not on an easement 

line.  My home is going to be within 200 or 300 feet 

of the line but my property isn't going to be on the 

easement so I was never notified.  But I live on a 

family farm, and some day that property line -- it's 

in an estate right now, part of it is -- but someday 

that line is not going to be the farm's.  It is going 

to belong to my wife.  So it is going to affect my 

family greatly.  

Everybody talked about property 

values.  I am a person that don't care about how much 

my ground is worth.  I can't put a price on my 

property.  It is mine; it means something to me.  And 

that's the way it is for a lot of these people who 

are farmers and have had generations of ground in 

your family.  It is not something that you are going 

to sell to some developer to put a bunch of $250,000 

homes on.  You want to live there.  You want to pass 
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it onto your kids and your grand kids.  So you are 

dealing with an emotional issue when you start 

talking to people in this community about that type 

of dealings.  

The other thing is we talk about 

economics, and I have heard many times over, well, 

they get paid one time for this thing.  You know 

what, it don't seem right to me when Ameren is going 

to get paid every month.  For as long as they 

generate electricity, they are going to get paid for 

the electric going across their property.  If they 

wanted to be such good stewards, why not go to work 

and say, okay, we are going to give you an easement 

for some many years.  You are going to get paid so 

much a year for that electric going across your 

property, and then we are going to renegotiate it 

every so many years.  

Talk economics, it is millions of 

dollars and you want to give out chunk change to the 

people that own the property right now one time for 

the use of this.  Other people's problem is of 

putting stuff under the ground, making it safer.  I 
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want to tell you people, I asked -- I was there in 

Monroe County and I asked all these people out here 

from Ameren and Peabody if any of them lived under a 

345,000 volt line if it was so safe.  One guy said he 

lived in a subdivision that had one going through it 

but his home was nowhere near it.  So if it is so 

safe and it don't mean nothing to them and they would 

just love to be there, why don't they all own homes 

underneath these things?  

The problem is we didn't decide to go 

to you guys.  You came to us.  And you are not giving 

us a voice or an issue.  It is we will have a few 

meetings, make everybody feel good.  We will act like 

we really care, but we really don't.  We will just 

hold another meeting.  It is not about money.  That's 

baloney; it is all about money.  I have got a 

suggestion for you.  They took the American Bottoms 

and made it an overflow pool for St. Louis.  You 

cannot build in the bottoms from Valmeyer all the way 

down to Prairie du Rocher unless you put your house 

15 foot in the air.  You can pass your costs onto the 

consumer.  That's what you are going to do.  There is 
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no way you are going to lose money on it; you are 

going to pass it on.  I told one of the guys at one 

of the other meetings, you have got all of this 

ground, a lot of it is state opened.  You can go down 

to the bottoms.  When you get to the co-op, hang a 

left and go back up to Kaskaskia to Baldwin.  You 

don't go past nobody's homes and you don't take a 

bunch of farm fields out.  

All I am saying is you have got to 

work with these people a little bit and let them know 

what's going on.  And I don't think when you 

negotiate on a one-by-one basis and nobody knows what 

you are paying and what it is going to really be, I 

don't think it is fair.  That's all I have got to 

say.

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  Go ahead.

MR. WOJTKOWSKI:  Good evening, everybody.  This 

is going to be very difficult for me.  My name is 

Dale Wojtkowski, W-O-J-T-K-O-W-S-K-I.  This is 

probably the loudest I have ever spoken in my whole 

life.  
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First of all, I would like to tell you 

all why I am here.  I have -- for various reasons I 

have objected to the basic area where they are 

building the power plant, mostly because 23 years ago 

I moved out of St. Louis and the big city and moved 

to the country.  Well, low and behold I find out that 

a mile and a half from my house they are building a 

power plant.  And I sat back and I thought, well, 

there is a meeting tonight about these power lines 

but there is no power lines going by my house.  But 

there is so many times I wished that people like you 

were with me at some of these meetings that I was 

with, the people that were willing to speak up, you 

know, their viewpoint.  And so I felt obligated to 

come down here and support the people in this area 

because we all need to work together on it.  And I 

appreciate just everybody here tonight voicing their 

opinion.  

Some things I would like to set 

straight.  We keep talking about jobs.  Well, let's 

talk about the union.  I don't know if anybody here 

is in the union.  There is probably a few union men 
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out here.  The coal mining union is what built this 

part of the country.  And if I was a betting man, 

which I am not, I would probably bet that those 200 

coal mining jobs will be non-union jobs.  I mean, I 

would feel comfortable betting on that, a lot of 

money.  

Second of all, to clarify again, I 

know it has been spoken of before, all this 

electricity that they are generating that is going to 

be going over all your land in these power lines is 

being sold mostly to out of state.  If it wasn't for 

electricity being deregulated a few years ago, we 

wouldn't even be having this meeting because they 

wouldn't have any needing to build another power 

plant in Illinois because we have plenty of 

electricity in Illinois.  

And so, you know, since we are selling 

this electricity to other states, let them pay to do 

it right, like you want to do it right, bury the 

power lines where they need to be buried, to build -- 

you know, let's go one step farther on my part, 

build -- you know, if I was looking out south of my 
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house and I saw them building a state of the art 

power plant, and I am talking about one that uses 

coal gasification, I might be able to have some pride 

again, rather than seeing a plant that is being built 

that is already using outdated technology.  And plus 

it is going to be eliminating the ability of other 

power plants to be built, you know, if they went with 

the integrated, the coal gasification.  

And I would like to also remind our 

politicians that somewhere in the Bill of Rights or 

Constitution, Preamble of the Constitution, there is 

talk in there about life, liberty and the pursuit of 

happiness.  And everybody that got up here and talked 

tonight was talking about their pursuit of happiness, 

not the stockholders of Peabody Energy's pursuit of 

happiness or anybody else.  It is our pursuit of 

happiness.  And what gives anybody else the right to 

take that away from us, just because it is the 

greater good of all these people that are living in 

these other states getting this electricity, that is 

a better issue than our happiness?  It is better for 

them to be happy or these 200 jobs?  I don't get it.  
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And not once, you know, have I heard 

Mr. Lechtenfeld or Mr. Reitz say anything about 

trying to protect our particular rights.  And, you 

know, they either -- remember again this is a 

government of the people, for the people and by the 

people, not for big industry, not for the people that 

pay for your campaigns.  Even though you like to 

accommodate them, you need to think about us, 

everybody here in this room right now.  And that's 

all I have got to say.

(Applause.)  

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  We have one more 

speaker. 

MR. GLASSCOCK:  Nolan Glasscock, 

G-L-A-S-S-C-O-C-K.  I am Nolan Glasscock.  I am a 

landowner, business owner.  I represent the city of 

Red Bud as an alderman.  So I was looking at this in 

several different perspectives.  As a landowner I 

have concerns.  I share everybody's sentiments there.  

Ameren and Peabody have expressed that they are 

sensitive to the landowner.  Gentlemen, I am sorry, I 

haven't witnessed that yet.  You say you are 
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sensitive to the landowner, yet you have hired an 

outside agency to negotiate, and nothing against Mr. 

Crum (sp) and his agency, I am sure they are a fine 

agency.  If you are sensitive to the landowner, you 

know, come to us yourself.  

You talk about trees, saving trees, 

yet when you are coming through a wooded area, I 

asked a question in Monroe County what do you do with 

the trees, will you cut them down or do you windrow 

them off to the side?  I don't want that on my 

property and there is trees on my property.  

I too don't want to be a pioneer for 

future generations.  As a business owner I think the 

power plant is a great thing, but I am also 

concerned.  It is the first power plant of many.  I 

know the governor has talked about bringing several 

power plants to southern Illinois because we have so 

much coal.  That's a great thing and we have got to 

plan for the future.  So are we just planning for one 

power plant or are we looking at the big picture?  So 

I am concerned about that.  

The power plants aren't the only 
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things coming to southern Illinois.  The ethanol 

plants, there is a host of them statewide, so it is 

not just power plants.  

I don't really have much else to say.  

I wasn't really prepared to speak.  I appreciate the 

time.  I appreciate you coming from Springfield.  I 

appreciate Senator Lechtenfeld and Dan Reitz for 

putting this together.  

One other thing, I guess, growing up 

my father always said to me if it is worth doing, it 

is worth doing right.  I wish I had a nickel for 

every time he said that.  As a business owner I 

adopted that as a slogan.  And, gentlemen, if it is 

worth doing, it is worth doing right and you ain't 

doing it right.  Thank you.

(Applause.)

HEARING OFFICER BENSKO:  I want to go into the 

question and answer period.   

COMMENT PORTION OF THE PUBLIC FORUM ADJOURNED


